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Inciependent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited (the “Company”)
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted.in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeqguate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attentionh in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained alil the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Confinued)
Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 01 April 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 44b to the financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

¢c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 45(x) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

.. Benéeficiaries. . .
(i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as

disclosed in the Note 45(x) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shalt
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (i) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid/provided for managerial remuneration. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other
details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Viren Soni

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 117694
Date: 14 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24117694BKFTSK6955

Page 4 of 11




BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibiton of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i (@  The inventory, comprising of finished commercial premises has been physically verified by the
management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable
and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies
were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more
than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has made
investments in companies, in respect of which the requisite information is as below. The
Company has not made any investments in firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties.

(@) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity. Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The Company has not provided/given any
guarantees, security, loan or advance in the nature of loan during the year.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

(©

(d)

(e)

®

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the company has not given any loan or advance in the nature of
loan to any other entity. Accordingly, the requirement to report on ciause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is
not applicable. :

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the company has not given any loan or advance in the nature of
loan to any other entity. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(jii)(d) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act"). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our. opinion the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products
manufactured by it (and/or services provided by it). Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Income-Tax or other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with
the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Income-Tax or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Income-Tax or other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute are as follows:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2024 (Continued)
Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum Remarks
statute the dues (Rs.) which the where , if any

amount dispute is
relates pending

Finance Act, | Denial of | 382.23 April 2010 to | Supreme None

1994 Cenvat Credit 2017 Court

CGST Act, | Goods and | 205.42 FY 2017-18 | Asst. None

2017 and | Services Tax and 2018-19 | Commissione

SGCT  Act, r of State Tax

2017

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

(©

d

(€)

®

) (@

(b)

(xi) (@)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under
the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

©

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation provided to us, there is no core investment
company within the Group (as per the provision of Core Investment Company (Reserve Bank)
Directors 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Viren Soni

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 117694
Date: 14 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24117694BKFTSK6955
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(i) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Graceworks Realty
& Leisure Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controis with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Viren Soni

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 117694
Date: 14 May 2024 ICAIl UDIN:24117694BKFTSK6955
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Graceworks Reality & Leisure Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
As at As at
Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 655.36 750.98
Investment property 6 23,131.21 23,548.49
Investment property under construction (including Capital
work in progress) 7 £30
Intangible assets 8
Financial assets
Investments 9 45,983.78 41,583.78
Other financial assets 10 136.20 74.52
Deferred tax asset (net) 1 235.46 138.15
Current tax assets (net) 12 392,27 256.31
Other non-current assets 13 63.60 32.18
Total non-current assets 70,597.88 66,385.51
Current assets
Inventories 14 32.09 32.09
Financial assets
Trade receivables 15 53.17 58.42
Cash and cash equivatents 16 257.44 12,301.70
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 17 7,525.00 260.00
Other financial assets 10 473.48 35.78
Dther current assets 13 71.16 63.08
Total current assets 8,412.34 12,751.07
Total assets 79,010.22 79,136.58
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 18 10.07 10.07
Other equity 19 67,198.30 66,546.13
Total equity 67,208.37 66,556.20
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 20 9,110.88 8,640.58
Other financial liabilities 21 745.65 811.40
Provisions 22 16.45 11.56
Other non-current liabilities 23 36.89 71.16
Total non-current liabilities 9,909.87 9,534.70
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 24 316.50 964.33
Trade payables 25
i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 89.26 84.62
ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterorises and small enterorises 448.27 224.29
Other financial liabilities 21 934.30 1,431.68
Provisions 22 3.37 2.37
Other current liabilities 23 100.28 338.40
Total current liabilities 1,891.98 3,045.69
Total liabilities 11,801.85 12,580.39
Total equity and liabilities 79,010.22 79,136.58

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For, BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.101248W/W-100022

Viren Sofi
Partner
Membership No: 117694

Place: Mumbai

Date: | 4 MP(\'f PRVUDESY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited
CIN: U72900MH2000PTC126232

&

Lalit Jain
(Director)
DIN: 08715049

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 May 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 May 2024




Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
{(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Diluted earnings per share (INR)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 26 3,412.49 3,224.90
Other income 27 679.24 176.06
Total income 4,091.73 3,400.96
Expenses
Changes in inventories 28 - -
Employee benefits expense 29 274.69 170.09
Finance costs 30 1,012.91 914.79
Depreciation and amortization expense 31 587.67 579.75
Other expenses 32 1,547.77 1,670.40
Total expenses 3,423.04 3,335.03
Profit before tax 668.69 65.93
Income Tax expense
Current tax 33 112.64 48.27
Income Tax of Earlier Years 33 - 25.85
Deferred tax 33 (97.64) (51.61)
Total income tax expense 15.00 22.51
Profit for the year 653.69 43.42
Other comprehensive income
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 1.28 (1.74)
b) Income Tax relating to the ltem that will not be reclassified to Profit or loss (0.33) 0.45
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 0.95 (1.29)
Total comprehensive income for the year 654.64 42.13
Earnings per share (Face Value INR 10 each) 34
Basic earnings per share (INR) 649.14 44.08
9.40 0.63

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For, BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registygtion No.101248W/W-100022

Viren Soni
Partner
Membership No: 117694

Place: Mumbai

Date: |\ MAY 24

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited
CIN: U72900MH2000PTC126232

Lalit Jain
(Director)
DIN: 08715049

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 May 2024

(Director)
DIN: 07466330

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 May 2024




Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amertization expenses

Assets discarded

Sundry balances written back

Balances in Debiors/Advances written of

Advance Lease Rental on Security doposit

License Fees Equalisation

Interest Expense for financial liabilities at amortised cost

Interest Income

Interest Expense on IndAS 109 for unwinding
Operating profit/loss before working capital changes

Changes in working capital
Increase/( Decrease) in Trade Payables

Increase/( Decrease) Other non - current financial Liabilities
Increase/( Decrease) in Other non - current Liabilities
Increase/( Decrease) in Other financial Current Liabilities
Increase/( Decrease) in Provisions

Increase/{ Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables

Decrease/ (Increase) in Inventories

Decrease/(Increase} in Other Non - Current Financial Assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non - Current Assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Financial Assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets

Cash generated from operations
Less: Income Laxes paid (Net}

Net cash inflows used in operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Term Deposits Matured
Term Deposits placed
Equity Investments made in Subsidiaries
Investments in compulsory convertible debentures of Subsidiaries
Interest Received

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of equity shares at share premium (Net of Issue Expenses)

Short Term Borrowings availed / {repaid) (Net)
Long Term Borrowings repaid

Share issue expenses

Issuance of Optionally convertible debentures

Interest paid

Net cash inflows used in financing activities (C)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C})
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 16)

Balances with banks

Cash on hand

Bank overdrafts

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
668.69 65.93
587.67 579.75
0.64 17.89
(33.42) .
= 223.23
(81.36) -
18.04 .
930.87 B36.15
(635.03) (138.08)
82.04 -
1,538.14 1,584.87
261.09 (162.52)
(65.75) 190.75
(34.27) 0.37
(1,684.01) 7.41
4.67 4.18
(238.12) 34.62
5.25 25.93
. {0.00)
1.64 (34.39)
(31.42) 11.55
(44.19) (8.13)
(8.07) 3.69
(295.04) 1,708.33
{248.45) (13.08)
(543.49) 1,695.25
(74.29) 529,39
(28,400.00) -
22,322.00 (100.00)
- (783.78)
{4,400.00) (40,800)
241.51 133.42
(10,310.78) (41,020.97)
. 3,177.84
(572.44)
470.29 (734.22)
e {6.36)
. 49,800.00
{1,012.91) (823.59)
{1,115.06) 51,413.67
(11,969.31) 12,087.94
12,301.70 213.76
332.39 12,301.7Q
257.44 12,301.46
- 0.24
74.95 =
332.39 12,301.70

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Act (Indian Accounitng Standard)Rules, 2015 under the Companies Act,2013

The above cash flow has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 - "Statement of Cashflows” prescribed under the Companies

Change in liability arising from activities = - o i
[ESrrowings - Non current [Refer Note 20) [ 8640.58 472,21 1.92) §,110.87
|Botrowings - current (Refer Note 24 | 96433 (647.83) 2 316.50

Change in liability arising from financing activities

1st April 2022 Cash flow Non cash 31st March 2023

Barrowings - Non current (Refer Note 20) 9,604.92 (976.57) 12.2 8,640.55

|uwmmgs - current {Refer Note 24) | 721.99 242.34 . 964.29

As per our report of even date
For, BSR & Co. LLP

SW/W-100022

Viren Soni
Partner*
Membership No: 117694

Place: Mumbal

pate: \*4 MFH ')'O.)'L‘.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited

CIN: U72900MH2000PTC126232 =

t ‘
lit Jain jesh Patil
(Director) tor)
DIN: 08715049 DIN: U7466330
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 10 May 2024

Date: 10 May 2024
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Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited
Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A) Equity share capital

For the year ended 31 March 2024

Amount
1,00,702 Equity Shares (31 March 2023: 1,00,702) of INR 10 each 10.07
Balance as at 1 April 2023 -
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior pericd errors 10.07
Restated balance as at 1 April 2023 .
Changes in equity share capital during the current year 10.07
Balance as at 31 March 2024

or the year ended 31 Marc| 23

Amount
1,00,702 Equity Shares (31 March 2022: 91,853) of INR 10 each 10.07
Balance as at 1 April 2022 -
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors 10.07
Restated balance as at 1 April 2022
Changes in equity share capital during the current year 10.07

Balance as at 31 March 2023

B) Other equity

For the year ended 31 March 2024

Reserve and Surplus Equity Other Comprehensive Total Equity
- = Component of Income
Particulars Secun~t|es Reta{ned Compound Remeasurement of
gremim Earnings Financial net defined benefit
Instruments plans
Balance as at 1 April 2023 12,066.16 (752.67) 55,225.00 7.64 66,546.13
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - o -
Restated balance as at 1 April 2023 12,066.16 (752.67) 55,225.00 7.64 66,546.13
Profit for the year - 653.69 - - 653.69
Stamp Duty Paid - - (2.50) - (2.50)
Remeasurements gain /(loss) 0.95 0.95
Balance as at 31 March 2024 12,066,16 (98.96) 55,222.50 8.59 67,198.30
For the year ended 31 March 2023
M Other Comprehensive Total
Reserve and Surplus Equity Income
Component of
Particulars Securities Retained Compound Remeasurement of
Premium Earnings Financial net defined benefit
Instruments
plans
Balance as at 1 April 2022 8,895.57 (796.08) 5,425.00 8.93 13,533.42
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors . . - . "
Restated balance as at April 2022 8.895.57 (796.08) 5,425.00 8.93 13,533.42
Profit for the year . 43.41 . S 43.41
Premium on issue of share during the year 3,170.59 - - - 3,170.59
Remeasurements gain /(loss) - - - (1.29) (1.29)
Redeemption of Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture 49,800.00 49,800.00
Balance as at 31 March 2023 12,066.16 {752.67) 55,225.00 7.64 66,546.13

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For, BS R & Co. LLP

Viren
Partner
Membership No: 117694

Place: Mumbai

Date: | MAY 2824

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Gracewaorks Realty & Leisure Private Li
CIN: U72900MH2000PTC126233

Lalit Jain
{Director)
DIN: 08715049

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 May 2024

Rajesh Patil
irector)
DIN! 07466330

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 May 2024




Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for vear ended 31st March, 2024

1. Corporate Information:

The Company is deemed public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act 2013, as applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Phoenix Mills Premises, 462, Senapati
Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (w), Mumbai — 400 013.

The Company is engaged in development and leasing of commercial and retail space. The principal place of business is at
LGB 15-16, Phoenix Paragon Plaza, Phoenix Marketcity, LBS Road, Kurla (w), Mumbai — 400 017.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting dated May 10,
2024,

2.  Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement:

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
the Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, read with section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 (the Act)
and other provisions of the Act, as amended.

The material accounting policies used in preparing these financial statements are same as used in preparation of annual
financial statement ended on March 31, 2024.

3.  Material Accounting Policies:

a) Functional and presentation of currency:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency and all amounts
are rounded to the nearest in rupees in lakhs except otherwise stated.

b) Basis of measurement:
The Financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except the following:

e  (Certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value.
o Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

c¢) Use of Estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions
that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as on the date of financial
statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are described in Notes No. 4. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

d) Property, Plant and Equipment:

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Capital work in progress, and all other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for vear ended 31st March, 2024

e)

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Such cost includes
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as specified by Schedule It to the Companies Act, 2013. The residual values are not more than
5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual values and useful lives and method of depreciation are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Particulars Estimated useful life (in years)
Land & Building 60 years

Plant and Equipment 15 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

IT Networking 6 years

Computers 3 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation on additions/(disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (upto) the date on which asset is

ready for use/ (disposed off).
Gains and losses on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing sales proceeds

with carrying amount. These are recognised in the statement of in profit or loss.

The cost property, plant and equipment at 1 April 2016, the Group’s date of transition to Ind AS, was determined with
reference to its carrying value recognised as per the previous GAAP (deemed cost), as at the date of transition to Ind

AS.

Investment Property:

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs
and wherever applicable, borrowing cost. Cost of of obtaining operating lease is also capitalized .Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation. . When significant
parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and

Loss as incurred.

Investment properties are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation on investment properties is provided on the straight-line method over the

useful lives of the assets as follows:
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Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for vear ended 31st March, 2024

f)

g)

h)

Particulars Estimated useful life
Building 60 years

The Fair value of the investment is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Fair values are determined
based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer.

An investment property is derecoghised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible asset:

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future economic
benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation methods and periods

Estimated useful lives of intangibie assets are considered as 5 years. Intangible assets are amortised over its useful
life using the straight-line method. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The cost Intangible assets at 1 April 2016, the Group’s date of transition to Ind AS, was determined with reference to
its carrying value recognised as per the previous GAAP (deemed cost}, as at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Impairment of Non — Financial Asset:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generation unit’s (CGU’s) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, uniess the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or a groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written

down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transaction are taken into account, if no such transactions

can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Inventories comprise Land and Realty work in progress representing properties under construction/ development of
commercial project.




Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for vear ended 31st March, 2024

i)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of realty construction / development
comprises all cost directly related to the project and other expenditure as identified by management which are
incurred for the purpose of executing and securing the completion of the project (net off incidental recoveries,
receipts). Cost of inventories also includes all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost includes the reclassification from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
relating to purchases of raw material but excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and at bank, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial Instrument:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instruments of another entity. Classifications of financial instrument are in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement and as per the definitions of financial assets, financial liability and an equity instruments.

Financial Assets and investments

i) Initial recognition and measurement:

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value {other than financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss) plus or minus, in the case of a, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.

i) Subseguent recognition and measurement:

Subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on the company’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. For the purpose of subsequent recognition and measurement
financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instrument at amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the

effective interest rate method.

Interest income

Interest income from debt instrument is recognised using effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate
is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of financial asset. When calculating effective interest rate, the company expects cash flows by
considering all contractual terms of financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.




Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for vear ended 31st March, 2024

e Equity instruments:

All equity instruments are initially measured at fair value. Any subsequent fair value gain /loss is recognised
through profit or loss if such investments are held for trading purposes. The fair value gains or losses of all other
equity securities are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

iii) De-recognition:

A financial asset is primarily derecognised i.e. removed from Company’s financial statement when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from asset have expired or

e The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under ‘pass- through’ arrangement
and either;

a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets,
b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required
to repay.
Financial Liabilities:

i) Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

ii) Subsequent measurement:

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and has designated
upon initial measurement recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held
for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.




Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for vear ended 31st March, 2024

i)

k)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De - recognition:

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or madification is treated as the
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial asset:

The company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the following:

»  Financial assets carried at amortised cost;
e  Financial asset measured at FVOCI debt instruments.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables or
contract revenue receivables.

Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The provision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECLis used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recoghise impairment loss

allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are

possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant




Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for vear ended 31st March, 2024

increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis. The company also factors collaterals in the form of security
deposit while arriving at loos allowance.

I} Classification of assets and liabilities as current and non — current:

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle for determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

m) Equity share capital:

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs net of taxes directly attributable to the issue of new equity
shares are reduced from equity, net of taxes.

n) Revenue Recognition:
Revenue from license fees and other operating services

Revenue from license fees is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis over the non-
cancellable lease term, unless there is another systematic basis which is more representative of the time pattern of

the lease.

Revenue from operating services is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of
promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in
exchange for those services, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties {for example taxes and duties
collected on behalf of the government). Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of performance obligations
and a receivable is recognized when it becomes unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due).

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, price
concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.

Contract asset

A contract asset (Trade receivable) is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. if the Company performs part of its obligation by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration
when that right is conditional on the Company’s future performance.

Contract liability

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration from the customer. if a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is received. Contract liabilities are reco nised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.
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p)

q)

Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains, a lease. A contract is or
contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange of consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an asset the
Company assesses whether:

The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should be
physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capability of a physical distinct asset. If the supplier has a
substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified.

The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout
the period of use; and

The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the decision
making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.

As a Lessee - Right of use Asset

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. At the
commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost which comprises initial measurement of
the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

As a Lessee - Lease Liability

At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease,
if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate.

Employees benefits:

(i} Short-term Employee benefits:

All employees’ benefits payable wholly within 12 months rendering services are classified as Short Term obligations.
Benefits such as salaries, wages, shot term compensated absences, performance incentives, expected cost of bonus
and ex-gratia are recognised during the period in which the employees renders related services.

(ii)  Post-employment obligations
a. Defined benefit plans

The Company has defined benefit plan comprising of gratuity. The Company’s obligation towards gratuity liability is
funded and is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The present value of the defined benefit
obligations is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The rate used to
discount defined benefit obligation is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet date on Indian
Government Bonds for the estimated term of obligations.

Re-measurements comprising of (a) actuarial gains and losses, (b) the effect of the asset ceiling {excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) and (c) the return on plan assets {excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they
oceur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.
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1

s)

The expected return on plan assets is the Company’s expectation of average long-term rate of return on the
investment of the fund over the entire life of the related obligation. Plan assets are measured at fair value as at the
Balance Sheet date.

The interest cost on defined benefit obligation and expected return on plan assets is recognised under employees
benefit expenses.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of defined benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or
settlement occurs.

b. Defined contribution plans

The defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which the Company contributes fixed
contribution to a government administered fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contribution. The Company’s defined contribution plan comprises of Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and
Employee State Insurance Scheme. The Company'’s contribution to defined contribution plans are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which employees have rendered services.

(iii) Long term Employee benefits:

The Company has other long-term benefits in the form of leave benefits. The present value of the other long term
employee benefits is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The rate used
to discount defined benefit obligation is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet date on Indian
Government Bonds for the estimated term of obligations.

Actuarial gains or losses arising on account of experience adjustment and the effect of changes in actuarial
assumptions are recoghised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as income or expense.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of other long-term benefits are recognised when the curtailment or
settlement occurs.

Borrowing Cost:

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of commercial
assets are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Such qualifying assets take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that are incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Provisions and contingencies:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using the government securities interest rate for the equivalent period.
Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed
at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are not recognised for

future operating losses.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when thereis a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
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the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information
on contingent liability is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are not recognised.
However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset,
but it is recognised as an asset.

t) Income Taxes:
Current Income Tax:

Current Income Tax liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities using the
tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or subsequently enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and creates provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred Tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred Income Tax is determined using the tax
rates and tax laws that are enacted or subsequently enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred Tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax asset and
liabilities are offset where the company has a legally enforceable right and intends either to settle on net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

u) Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential eguity shares.

4, Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as on the date of financial
statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities

affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, as described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
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financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and
judgement, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(a}

(b)

{c)

{d)

()

(f)

Depreciation and useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into account
their estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets
annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives and residual values are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

Investment Property

Fair value of investment property is based on valuations performed by an accredited registered valuer. The fair value
of the Company’s investment properties has been arrived at using discounted cash flow method. Under discounted
cash flow method, cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of cash flows are discounted. The main inputs
used are rental growth rate, terminal yields and discount rates which are based on comparable transactions and
industry data.

Recoverability of trade receivable

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a
provision against those receivables is required. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

Defined Benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed

at each reporting date.
Provisions:

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow
of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The
timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and
circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the
carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts

and circumstances.
Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash
loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
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calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period.

(g) Fair Value measurement:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on the quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques, including
discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgments and assumptions.

(h) New Standards/Amendments notified but not yet effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), on March 31, 2023, through the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS)) Amendment Rules, 2023 amended certain existing Ind ASs on miscellaneous issues with effect from 1st April
2023. Following are few key amendments relevant to the Company:

i. Ind AS 1 —Presentation of Financial Statements & Ind AS 34— Interim Financial Reporting —
Material accounting policy information (including focus on how an entity applied the
requirements of Ind AS) shall be disclosed instead of significant accounting policies as part of
financial statements.

ii. Ind AS 107 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures —

Information about the measurement basis for financial instruments shall be disclosed as part of
material accounting policy information.

iii. Ind AS 8 — Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimate and errors-

Clarification on what constitutes an accounting estimate provided.

iv. Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes —

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not
apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences.

The Company does not expect the effect of this on the financial statements to be material, based on preliminary evaluation.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Fncmm Realty & Lefsure Private Limited
[Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

7 Investment property under construction

IParti:uIars As at 1 April 2023 | Expenditure during Capitalized Closing as at 31
the year during the year March 2024

Investment Property 1.10 {1.10) -

|particulars As at 1 April 2022 | Expenditure during Capitalized Closing as at 31
the year during the year | March 2023
Investment Property 31.88 {77.75) 46.97 1.10

Project under Capital work in progress is neither overdue nor exceeded its cost compared to its original budget

7.01 (a) Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024

cwip Amaunt in Investment Property (CWIF) for a period of
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Mare than 3 Total
years years
Projects in progress
Project- | - - . . 5
Total - - - E S
7.02 (a) Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023
CwWIP Amount in Investment Property (CWIP) for a periad of
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years Mictepharns ot
years
Projects In progress
I Project- | 1.10 1.10
Tatal 1.10 = - - 1.90

8 Intangible assets

Grows Carrying Amount Amortisatlon & Impairment Het Carrying Amount
As at Asat Asat Amortisation Asat As at Asat
Particulars Additi Isposal
1 April 2023 . Dlipceals 31 March 2024 1April2023  Fortheyear  DUPO3  gijarch2024 31 March2024 1 April 2023
Software 26.67 - - 26.67 26.67 - 26.67 s =
Total 26.67 - - 1667 .67 - - 26.67 - -
Gross Carrying Amount. Amartisation & Impalrment Net Carrying Amount
n As at ey o As at As at Amortisation n As at As at As at
P
EICTE 1 April 2022 ddditions REPeal 31 March 2023 1April2022  Fortheyear  DPPOSS 3¢ uarch2023 31 March2023 1 Apri 2023
Software 26.67 - - 26,67 26.67 - 26.67 . =
Total 26.67 - - 26,67 26.67 - - 26.67 - -

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

No. of Shares/Units Amount
9 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENT
A INVESTMENT IN EQUITY SHARES & DEBENTURES MEASURED AT COST
UNQUOTED INVESTMENT
A1 Investment in equity instruments
(1) Investment In Subsidiaries
(Equity Shares of face value of INR 10/- each fully paid-up unless otherwise stated)
Thoth Mall And Commercial Real Estate Private Limited 40,000 40,000 783.78 783.78
783.78 783.78
A2 Investment in Debentures
{i) Investment in Subsidiaries
(Opticnally Fully Convertible Debentures of INR 100/- each fully paid-up unless otherwise stated)
Thoth Mall and Commercial Real Estate Private Limited 45,200 40,800 45,200.00 40,800.00
45,200.00 40,800.00
45,963.78 41,583.78

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Particulars
1. Aggregate Value of Quoted Investment

Book Value

Market Value . .
2. Aggregate Boak Value of other Unquoted Investment 45,983.78 41,583.78

In pursant to Security Purchase Agreement dated December 15,2022 executed by and between the Company, The Phoenix Mills Limited and Safal Constructions (India) Privated Limited, the
Company has acquired 40,000 equity shares having face value Rs. 10 of Thoth Mall and Commercial Real Estate Private Limied

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Category wise Non Current Investments
i i 45,983.78 41,583.79
| Assets Mo ed at Cost s 2 &L
Financial Assets Measured a P i

Total
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10

11

12

Other financial assets 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Accrued Interest
1. On Fixed deposit with bank = 399.45 5.94
2. On Optionally Convertible Debentures
From related parties - 0.08 - 0.01
Other Receivables
Stamp duty recoverable . 1.57 -
Depsoit with others 11.39 . . .
Licence fees equalisation asset 17.81 72.38 74.52 29.83
Other Bank Balance 107.00 . - -
136.20 473.48 74.52 35.78
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Movement in Deferred Tax is as follows:
Opening Balance 138.15 86.09
Less : Tax (credit) recognised in statement of profit and loss 97.64 51.61
Add : Tax charge recognised in other comprehensive income (0.33) 0.45
Closing Balance 235.46 138.15
Recognised/ Recognised/
Year ended 31 March 2024 Opening Balance (reversed) in Profit (e 13ther Closing Balance
or loss comprehensive
income
Deferred tax assets:
On provision for employee benefits 0.45 - (0.33) 0.12
Related to Disallowances under Income Tax Act, 1961 11.67 {33.95) - (22.28)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 43.99 1.27 - 45.26
MAT Credit Entitlement 81.57 112.64 - 194.21
137.68 79.96 (0.33) 217.31
Deferred tax liabilities:
On property, plant and equipment 0.47 17.67 - 18.14
0.47 17.67 - 18.14
Deferred tax assets (Net) 138.15 97.64 {0.33) 235.46
Recognised/ Recognised/
Year ended 31 March 2023 Opening Balance (reversed) in Profit (ehsresd)in c}ther Closing Balance
or loss comprehensive
income
Deferred tax assets:
On provision for employee benefits - - 0.45 0.45
Related to Disallowances under Income Tax Act, 1961 40.15 (28.48) - 11.67
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 23.28 20.71 - 43.99
MAT Credit Entitlement 31.25 50.33 = 81.57
94.67 42.56 0.45 137.68
Deferred tax liabilities:
On property, plant and equipment (8.58) 9.05 = 0.47
(8.58) 9.05 = 0.5
Deferred tax assets (Net) 86.09 51.61 0.45 138.15

Deferred Tax Assests have not been recognized in respect of following items as it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the said

assests can be utilized:

House Property Losses
Business & Profession Head Losses
Unabsorbed Depreciation

Details of Tax Losses for the Financial Year ended /(Benefit of tax losses expriring on)

Business Losses:

March 31, 2017 { Expiring on March 31, 2025)
March 31, 2018 ( Expiring on March 31, 2026)
March 31, 2019 ( Expiring on March 31, 2027)
House Property Losses:

March 31, 2018 ( Expiring on March 31, 2026)
March 31, 2019 ( Expiring on March 31, 2027)
March 31, 2020 { Expiring on March 31, 2028)
Unabsorbed depreciation

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Current tax assets

Advance income tax (net of provisions of Rs.630.83 Lakhs PY Rs. 518.19 lakhs)

Movement in Provision:

At beginning of the year

Less: Charge for the year

Add: Tax paid during the year (net of refund received}
At the end of the year

301.45 301.45
215.36 215.36
27.00 27.00
543.81 543.81
334.68 334.68
789.70 789.70
1,095.33 1,095.33
694.18 1,540.93
1,882.92 1,882.92
1,686.57 1,686.57
94.01 94.01
14.02 14.02
4.53 4.53
6,595.94 7,442.69

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

392.27 256.31
392.27 256.31
256.31 317.34
112.64 (74.11)
23.32 13.08
392.27 256.31




Grace
Notes

waorks Realty & Leisure Private Limited
forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

13

14

15

15.01

Other assets
Deposits (Unsecured, Consider Good)
Other Deposits

Advances Given

Advance to Vendors

Advances to Others

Prepaid Expenses

Balance with Government authorities
Total other non-current assets

Inventories
(Valued at cost or Net realisable value whichever is less)
Realty Finished Stock

Trade receivable

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Non Current Current Non Current Current
33.09 - 0.15 -
- 31.49 - 12.76
2.9 3.19 - 9.02
0.08 36.48 10.23 34.96
27.52 - 21.80 6.34
63.60 71.16 32.18 63.08

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

32.09
32.09

32.09
32.09

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(a) Considered Good - Unsecured 66.17 229,34

(b) Significant Increase in Credit Risk 162.82 b
228.99 229.34

Less: Provision for expected credit loss (175.82) (170.92)
53.17 58.42

Trade receivables are hypothecated against borrowings (Refer note 20)

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing

Ageing of Trade Receivables

31 March 2024 Outstanding for following periods from due date

Particulars Less than 6 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 Mare than Total

months - 1 year years years 3 years

gi) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 714 7.14

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have significant increase in E - - .

credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - -

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good - - - - .

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in E . 162.82 162.82

credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - -

Unbilled trade receivable 19.29

Billed but not due 39.74

Gross Trade Receivable 228.99

Less: Loss allowance (Disputed + Undisputed) (175.82)

Total 53.17

3MaTch;2023 Outstanding for following periods from due date

Particulars Less than 6 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 More than Total

months -1 year years years 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 30.26 30.26

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have significant increase in - 0.24 - 0.24

credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired = . - -

{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good - - . -

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in - - 165.63 165.63

credit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired = 3 = x

Unbilled trade receivable 10.79

Billed but not due 22.43

Gross Trade Receivable 229.34

Less: Loss allowance (Disputed + Undisputed (170.92)

Total 58,42

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
in current accounts
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand

Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits with original maturity not more than 12 months

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

107.44 51.46
150.00 12,250.00
2 0.24
257.44 12,301.70

31 March 2023
260.00
260.00

31 March 2024
7,525.00
7,525.00
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Hotes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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18  Share capltal
18.01 Equity shares

Authorized
50,00,000 Equity Shares (31 March 2023: 50,00,000) of INR 10 each
Speclal Equity Shares Capltal

il id u
1,00,720 Equity Shares (31 March 2023: 91,853) of INR 10 each
Special Equity Shares Capital
Total

{i) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year an exercise of employee options
Outstanding at the end of the year
(i} Detalls of shares held by shareholders holding mare than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

31 March 2024

Name of the shareholder Number of % of holding in
shares the class
Lty thar, value INR 10 sach ful ald
The Phoenix Mills Limiled 67,568 67.10%
Reco Zinnia Private Limited (Singapore} 33134 32.90%

(i) Detalls of Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year

31 March 2024

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and ather declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

500.00 500.00

500,00 500.00

10.07 10.07

’ ID:O? lD.‘D?

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Number of shares Amount Humber of shares Amount
1,00,702 10,07,020 1,853 9,18,530
- - B 845 B3.490
1,00,702 10,07,020 1,00,702 10,07,020

31 March 2023

Number of % of holding in the
shares class
67,568 67.10%
24,285 24.12%

31 March 2023

% of total % Change during
the year

No. of Shares
Promoter name shares

% of total shares % Change during
the year

No. of Shares

Equity shares of Face value INR 10 each fully pald
The Phoenbe Mills Limited 67,568 67.10%

{lv) Detalls of Shares held by holding company / uitimate holding company and/or their substdiaries / assaciaties at the end of the year

31 March 2024
Number of % of holding in
shares the class

Name of the shareholder

Equity shares of Face value INR 10 each fully pafd
The Phoentx Mills Limited 67,568 67%

at a premium of ¥ 35901.81 per equity share, aggregating up to ¥ 31,77.84 lakhs on private placement basis.

shall be in proportion to the number of shares held by the Shareholders,

In pursuant to Additional Subscription Agreement dated June 10, 2022 executed by and between the company, The Phoenix Mills Limited, and Reca Zinnia Private Limited, the company has allotted 8,849 equity shares having face value ¥ 10 each

The company has only one class equity shares having face value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares Is entitled to one vate per share. Equity shares holders are also entitled to dividend as and when proposed by the Board of Direct?ls
and approved by Share holders in Annual General Meeting, In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all Preferential amounts which

47,568 67.10%

31 March 2023

Number of % of holding in the
shares class
67,568 67%




Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19  Other equity

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Securities premium 12,066.16 12,066.16
Surplus/ {deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss (98.98) (752.66)
Equity Component of Compound Financial Instruments 55,222.51 55,225.00
Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans 8.59 7.64
67,198.30 66,546.13
19.01 Securities premium - Equity
Opening balance 12,066.16 8,895.57
Add : Securities premium credited on share issue - 3,170.59
Closing balance 12,066.16 12,066.16
19.02 Surplus/(deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening baltance {752.66) (796.08)
Add: Net profit for the current year 653,69 43.42
Closing balance (98.98) (752.66)
19.03 Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 7.64 8.93
-Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax) 0.95 (1.29)
Closing balance 8.59 7.64
19.04 Equity Comp. of Comp d Fil ial Instr 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
-Optionally Convertible Debenture / Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture
Offbeat Developers Pvi. Ltd. - Optionally Fully Convertible Debenlure (OFCD) 5,425.00 5,425.00
Vamona Developers Pvt Ltd - Optionally Converible Debenture (OCD) 28,298.58 28,300.00
Offbeal Developers Pvt Lid - Optionally Convertible Debenlure (OCD) 21,498.93 21,500.00
Closing balance 55,222.51 55,225.00

15.05 Out of 4,98,00,000 OCDs, 2,20,00,000 OCDs having an option to the company to convert the debentures into equity shares on or before 201h March, 2033. Each debenture is converlible into such number of
euity shares with a face value of 10 each fully paid al premium of 17,780 on the date of conversion,

19.06 Out of 4,98,00,000 OCDs, 2,15,00,000 OCDs having an option to the company to converl lhe debentures inlo equity shares on or before 22nd March, 2033, Each debenture is convertible into such number of
euity shares with a face value of ¥ 10 each fully paid at premium of 2 17,780 on the dale of conversion.

19.07 Out of 4,98,00,000 OCDs, 63,00,000 OCDs having an option to the company to converl lhe debentures into equity shares on or before 23rd March, 2033. Each debenture is convertible into such number of
euity shares with a face value of ¥ 10 each fully paid al premium of 17,780 on the date of conversion.

Out of 54,25,000 OFCDs, 0.0001% Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures - Series D of 25,00,000 having an option to the issuer to convert the debentures into equity shares on or before January 7, 2030.
Each debenture is convertible into equity share of ¥ 10 each fully paid at premium of € 20979 on the date of conversion. The company has an option to redeem the debeniures in one or more tranches at
the redemption premium not exceeding ¥ 10/- per Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture on or before January 6, 2030,

19.08

Description of nature and purpose of each reserve

d on equity shares and debentures issued, which can be utilised only in accordance with the provision of the Companies

a) Security Premium Account : Securities premium rep premium

b) Retained Earings reserve: Retained Eamings represent the undistributed profils of the Company.

in equity for items to be accounted in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). OCl is classified inlo ). lems that

c) Other Comprehensive Income: Other Comp ive Income repi the bal

will not be reclassified to profit and loss ii). ltems that will be reclassified to profit and loss.

20  Non-current borrowings 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Secured
{a) Term loan
Term Loan from Banks and Financial Institutions 9,352.43 9,604.92
9,352.43 9,604.92
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (241.55) (964.33)
9,110.88 8,640.58

Total non current maturities of non current borrowings

20.01 Maturity Profile of Term Loan from Banks and Financial Institutions are set out below:

Financials Year Amount
FY 2023-2024 553.66
FY 2024-2025 245.41
FY 2025-2026 395.83
FY 2026-2027 641.24
FY 2027-2033 8,106.67

Mote : The above amount does not include the processing fees paid at the time of borrowing.

Term loan from ICICI bank of Rs. 9500 lakhs (31 March 2023 :Term loan from Standard Chartered Bank Rs. 9675.27 lakhs) is secured by first and exclusive
charge over land and building,receivables of project Phoenix Paragaon Plaza
Interest is calculated on 8.50%

21 Other financial liabilities 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
Interest accrued but not due on loan 8.85 . 2.47
Payable for purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment - 3.19 s -
Security Deposits from Occupants/Licensees 745.65 796.93 811.40 693.50
Others (Corpus & Inter unit transfer) - 125.33 - 735.71
Total other financial liabilities 745.65 934.30 811.40 1,431.68




Graceworks Realty & Lelsure Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

22 Provislons 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non Current Current Nen Current Current

Provislan for amployee benefits (Refer note 29)
Provision for gratuity {unfunded)

Provision for compensated absences (unfunded) 16.45 7 11.56 w3
Provisions(Others, Loan & Advances) . . . .
Provision for Property Tax - - - -
Total Provislons 16.45 3.37 11.56 237

23 Other current Habilities 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Non-Current Current Non-Current Current

Statutory due payable (TDS/GST/TCS/PF) * 18.32 = 83.15
Other liability . 3.86 - .
Advance from customer - 10.87 * 50.64
Advance from others . ¥ & 128.25
Advance Rental 36.89 67.23 71.16 76.35
Total other current liabilities 36.89 100.28 71.16 338.40

24 Current borrowings 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Short term loan (Secured) = 5
Current Maturity of Long term Debts 241.55 964.33
Overdraft facility 74.95 -
Total current borrowings 316.50 964.33

Bank overdraft facility from ICICI of % 74.95 Lakhs (31st March 2023 : NIL Lakhs) is payable on demand and secured by flrst and exclusive charge over land and building,
receijvables of project Phoenix Paragaon Plaza,
Interest is calculated on 8.50%

25 Trade payables 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises* 89.26 84.62
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises* 448.27 224.29
Total trade payables 537.53 308.91

“The above information, regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company. This has been relied upon by the Auditors.

25.01 Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on the information available with the Company:

Particutars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
(a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:
Principal 89.26 84.62
Interest 3.85 .
Total .
(b} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the -
appointed day during each accounting year.
(c} The amount of interest due and payable for the perfod of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but -
without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.
(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the .
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act.
25.02 Trade Payables ageing schedule

31 March 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following perfods from due date of Payment

Less t::n b 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years fotas
yei

(1) MSME 71.70 17.02 0.04 0.50 89.26
(1i) Disputed dues - MSME -
{11 Others 131.88 13.50) 0.65 32.88 161.91
(v Disputed dues - Others = . - = =
Unbilled Dues 286.36
Total 203.58 13.52 0.69 33,38 537.53
31 March 2023

Particulars QOutstanding for followi ericds from due date of Payment

Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Yorl
year

(i) MSME 81.66 2.91 84.62
ii} Disputed dues - MSME a
(111} Others 102.86 0.55 0.29 37.53 141.23
iv Disputed dues - Others - - . . . 66
B. Unbilled dues Y
Total 184.52 0.55 0.29 40.44 308.91
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26 Revenue from operations
Sale of Services
License Fees
Service charges
Revenue from Parking

Other operating revenue
Others#

Total revenue from operations

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

2,571.24 2,424.31

614.86 559.68

167.07 233.73

3,353.17 3,217.72

59.32 7.18

59.32 7.18

3,412.49 3,224.90

~Other operating revenue includes Property tax,deposit forfeiture and interest on overdue outstanding

Details of revenue from contracts with customers recognised by the Company, net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss:

i) Revenue from contract with customers
Service charges
Revenue from Parking

Other operating revenue
Total Revenue from Operations

Movement of Contract Liabilities:

Amount included in contract liabilities at the begining of the year
Amount Received/adjusted against contract liability during the year
Performance obligations satisfied during the year

Amount included in contract liabilities at the end of the year

27 Other Income
Interest income
On Fixed Deposit
On Optionally Convertible Debenture
Others
Interest income on income tax refund
Sundry Balances Written Back
Miscellaneous income
Total other income

614.86 559.68
167.07 233.73
781.93 793.41
59.32 7.18
841.25 800.59
10.87 33.87
10.87 33.87
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
643.18 138.08
0.06 0.01
0.58 1.81
- 18.50
33.42 -]
2.00 17.66
679.24 176.06
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28 Changes in inventories

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Realty Finished Stock

Less: Inventories at the end of the year
Realty Finished Stock

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
32.09 32.09
32.09 32.09
32.09 32.09
32,09 32.08

Net decrease/ (increase)

29 Employee benefits expense

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense

30 Finance costs

Interest Expenses on term loan/Optionally convertible
debentures/Optionally fully convertible debentures

Total finance costs

262.79 162.15
9.24 5.61
2.66 2.33
274,69 170.09

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1,012.91 914.79
1,012.91 914.79

31 Depreciation and amortization expense

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on investment property

Total depreciation and amortization expense

535,72 534.60
51.95 45.15
587.67 579.75

32 Other expenses

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Electricity Expenses 462.18 464.33
Rates and taxes 225.41 226.06
Repairs and maintenance - Building 145.30 126.20
Repairs and maintenance - Plant & Machinery 61.44 74.15
Repairs and maintenance - Others 55.86 9.63
Travel and conveyance expenses 18.35 12.63
Water and gas charges 3.55 8.01
Commission and other transaction charges 0.17 0.02
Insurance 45.35 50.82
Printing & Stationery 0.15 1.97
Telephone, internet and communication charges 2.08 1.94
Legal and professional charges 138.35 141.28
Advertisement, Promotion and Marketing Expenses 11.27 3.51
Directors sitting fees, remuneration and commission 2.20 3.60
Manpower and Consumables Cost 272.05 -
Housekeeping Expenses 84.75 292.27
Audit fees* 15.12 11.92
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 2.25 223.23
Loss on sale/disposal/ discard of fixed assets 0.64 17.89
Miscellaneous expenses 1.30 0.94
Total other expenses 1,547.77 1,670.40
*Note : The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive of Goods and Service Tax)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
As auditor:
Statutory audit 12.00 9.45
In other capacity:
Certification 1.00
Tax audit fees 250
out of pocket expenses 0.62 1.47
Total 15.12 11.92
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33

Taxation

33.01 Income tax expense charged to the statement of profit or loss

33.02

- Current tax taxes
- Income Tax Earlier Years
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

Deferred tax expense charged to the statement of profit or loss
-In respect of Cuurent Year ( Including Minimum Alternate Tax)
-In respect of Previous Year ( Including Minimum Alternate Tax)
Deferred tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

Income tax expense charged to OCI
Deferred tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit and loss
Income tax charged to OCI

Reconciliation of tax charge

Profit before tax

Tax Rate

Income tax expense at tax rates applicable

Tax effects of items that are not deductible in determining taxable income:

Additional allowances for House Property Income
Effect of exempt income

Tax paid under MAT

Expenses disallowed in Income tax

Taxes on carry forward lossses

Other temporary (allowances)/Disallowances

Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Effective Tax Rate

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

112.64 48.27

= 25.85
112.64 74.11
(97.64) {51.61)
(97.64) (51.61)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

{0.33) 0.45
(0.33) 0.45
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
668.69 65.93
26.00% 26.00%
173.86 17.14
(62.62) (48.52)
37.8 (10.03)
112.64 48.3
75.4 63.8
(218.57) (23.74)
10.2 1.4
128.69 48.27
19.25% 73.21%
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34 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares|
that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit attributable to equity shareholders for basic EPS 653.69 43.42
Profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution 653.69 43.42
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS* 1,00,702 98,496
Effect of dilution:
Share opticns 68,54,729 68,54,729
Welghted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 69,55,431 69,53,225
Dol
3401 EPS
Bastc Earning Per Share (%) 649.14 44.08
Diluted Earning Per Share (%) 9.40 0.63
35 Employee benefits
35.01 Contribution to Defined Cantribution Plan
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Employer's Contribution towards Provident Fund (PF) 7.10 5.14
7.10 5.14
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and pension fund fer qualifying employees to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner

15,02 Defined benefit plans
The company provides gratuity benefit to it's employees which is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation for leave encashment is recognised in the same manner as gratuity

U] Actuarial assumptions 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate {per annum) 7.20% 7.30%

Salary Escalation Rate 7.00% 7.00%
Expected rate of retumn on assets 7.00% 7.40%
Attritions/ withdrawal rate 10% 10%
Mortality Rate 1ALM(2012 -14) 1ALM(2012 -14)
Ultimate Ultimate
The welghted average duration of plan 7.73 years 9.33 years
No of Employees 13 12
Average Age 37.85 37.39
Total Salary 6.74 4.82
Average Salary 0.51 0.40
Average Service 5.09 4.51
Notes:
1. Salary escalation rate is arrived after taking into account regular increament, price inflation and promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in employment market.
2. Discount rate is based on prevailing market ylelds of Indian Government Securities as at balance sheet date for estimated terms of obligation.
3. Attrition rate/ withdrawal rate is based on company's policy towards retention of enployees, historical data and industry outlook.
4. Expected contibution to defined benefit plans for the next financial year 2024 -25 is T NIL
5. The above information is certified by actuary.
i) Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation Employee’s gratuity fund

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 15.89 12.00
Interest cost 1.16 0.92
Current service cost 2.70 1.20
Benefits paid
Actuarial {gains) / losses from defined benefit plan 1.26 1.77
Present value of obligation at the end of the year* 21.03 15.89
*Included in provision for employee benefits (Refer note 22)

fil) Expense recognized Employee’s gratuity fund

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 2.70 1.20
Interest cost 1.16 ?9§
Expected return on plan assets (1.83) (1.85)
Total T ized in the Profit and Loss* 2.03 9.47
*Included in Employee benefits expense (Refer Note 29)

) R ement (gain)/ loss r ized in other compr ive income __31March2024 31 March2023 |
Amount recongnised in OCl, Beginning of year oo
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.13 3
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions - .
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments 1.14 ) .77
Actuarial (Gain)/ Losses 1.27 .'
Return on Plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest expense 1. =
Net Acturial (gatn)/loss recognised for the year ] 22:[/ 1‘?7
Amount recongnised in OCI, end of year = 5

i i lan assets are, as follows : Employee’s gratuity fund
] Changes in the fair value of plan b  3iMarch2024 31 March2023 |
23.08
Opening balance of fair value of plan assets 2111:; p
Expected return on plan assets g d
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest o o
Contn.butlons (0.10) 0.04
Benefits pald 36.95 74.91
Closing balance of fair value of plan assets . .
i Employee’s gratuity fund
V) Assets and Hablilities 0% 31 March 2023
pan 21.03 15.89
Present value of obtigation as at the end of the year (26.98) (24,91)
Fair value of plan assets & '”) 19.02)
Net (assets) / liability recognized in Balance Sheet* R _|
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A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2024 is as shown below:
Employee’s gratuity fund

Impact on defined benefit abligation ALBARES 2024 31 barch 2023
Discount rate
1% increase
1% decrease (Z‘g:) {:':zi
Rate of increase in salary
1% increase
3.64 3.85
1% decrease (3.55) (3.61)
Expected return on plan assets
1% increase
0. 5
1% decrease © :i) i: ;‘:1

These gratuity plan typically expose to the company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, Interest risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk:

The present vz?lue of the defined benefit plan Liability is calculated using a discount rate which Is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on gavernment bands. For ather defined benefit plans, the

:1sfmunt rate is determined by reference to market yield at the end of reporting period on high quality corparate bonds when there Is a deep market for such bands, if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan
eficit,

Interest risk:

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan debt investments,

Longevity risk:

The present valile of the defined benefit plan Ulability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants

will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. s such, an increase in salary of plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Maturity profile of defined henefit obligation Employee’s gratuity fund

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Within the next 12 months 2.48 1.90
Between 2 to 5 years 5.09 6.94
Between 5 to 10 years 9.38 6.80

Unfunded scheme - Earned Leaves

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Present value of unfunded obligations 13.93 9.75

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 4.67 4.18
Discount rate {per annum) 7.20% 7.30%
Salary escalation rate (per annum) 7.00% 7.00%

Where Company is a lessor:
The Leave and License agreements are generally for a period of 1 ta 5 years. The terms also provide for escalation of License fees on a perlodical basis. Generally, the company has a right to terminate these agreements by glving advarce

notice as stipulated therein.

Maturity analysis on lease payments receivable.

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Less than one year 1,696.35 1,894.08
One to five years 879,16 1,691.21
More than five years » =
Total 2,575.51 3,565.29

Segment reparting

The Company is mainly engaged in real estate activities where revenue is principally derlved from operating lease rental incame attributable to retail outlets in its retail mall together with provision of related services, which constitutes
the sole aperating segment of the company catering Lo Indian Customer Accordingly, the Campany has anly one (dentiflable segment reportable under Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments. Managing Director (the ‘Chlef Operational Decision
Maker' as defined In Ind AS 108) monitors the operating results of the company's business for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.

The revenues from transactions with a single customer does not exceed 10 per cent or more of the company’s revenues,

The Company operates in a single geographical area i.e. India.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Carrying Amount: Fair Value Carrving Amount Fair Value
Financlal assets
Financial assets valued at amortized cost
Trade receivable 53.17 53.17 58.42 58.42
Cash and Cash Equivalents 150.00 150,00 12,301.70 12,301.70
Deposits with Banks 7,782.00 7,782.00 260.00 260.00
Other financial assets 502.69 502.69 110.30 110.30
Total financial assets 8,487.86 8,487.86 12,730.42 12,730,421
Financlal liabilities
Financial Liabilities valued at amartized cost
Borrowings - Variable rate 9,352.43 9,352.43 9,604.92 9,604.%2
Trade payables and others 537.53 537.53 308.91 308.91
Other finandal Uabilities 1,680.11 1,680.11 1,243.06 2,241.0%
Total financfal abilities 11,570.07 11.570.07 12,156.92 12,156.92

Note : The Financial Assets above do not Include Investments in subsidiary which are carried at cost in terms of the optlon available in Ind AS 27 “Separate Financial Statements”,

Fair valuation techniques:
The Company maintains policies and pracedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available.

The follawing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

1. Fair value of Long term Borrowings is calculated based on discounted cash flow. ) )
2. Fair value of Financial Assets & Financial Liability {except Long term Borrowings) are carried at amortised cost and is not materially different from it’s carrying cost.

Fair value hierarchy

The followling Is the hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

«Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) tn active markets for identical assets or liabilitles.

sLevel 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

sLevel 3 - Inputs for the assets ar liabilities that are not baWa {unobservable inputs).
S S o
—
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Financial risk management abjectives and policies
The Company s expesed to varfous financial risks. These risks are categorized Into market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s risk management Is coordinated by the Board of Directors and focuses on securing long term
and short term cash flows.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk,
such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings and derivative financial Irstruments.

(1) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk {5 the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument. will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Almost 100% of the company’s borrowings are linked to Repo rate.

Interest rate sensitivity

Incriease/ (decrease) in Interest cost of Long term borrowings for the year: :

Change in Rate of Effect on Profit/(Loss) before tax
Interest
2023-2024 J 2022-2023
+1%/-1% 95.94 105.69
(1) Price risk

The Company is not exposed to the comodity and other price risk.

{ifl) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctuste because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates
relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities {when revenue or expense is denominated in a different currency from the Company’s functional currency).

The Company is exposed to very mini foreign ge risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company that a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to meet its obligations. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, mutuat funds, financial institutions and other financial instruments,

Trade receivables and contract assets
The Company extends credit to customers in normal course of business. The Company considers factors such a2 credit track record in the market and past dealings for extension of credit to customers. To manage credit rigk, the

Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of the customer, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and aging of accounts receivables. Outstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored to make an assessment of recoverability. Receivables are provided as doubtful / written off, when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Where receivables have been provided / written off,
the Company continues regular followup , engage with the customers, legal options / any other remedies available with the objective of recovering these outstandings.

The Company is not exposed to concentration of credit risk to any one single customer since services are provided to vast specturm. The Company also takes security deposits, advances , post dated cheques etc from its customers,
which mitigate the credit risk to an extent.

Expasure to credit risk
The gross carrying amount of financlal assets, net of impairment losses recognised represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023 s as follows:

As at Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Financial assets for which loss allowances are measured using 12 months Expected Credit Losses (ECL):
Other Investments . .
Cash and cash equivalents 150.00 12,301.70
Bank Deposits 7,782.00 260.00
Loans - 260.00
Other financial assets 502.69 110.30
Financial assets for which loss allowances are measured using Life time Expected Credit Losses (ECL):
Trade receivables 53.17 58.42
Life time Expected credit loss for Trade fvables under simplified approch
Ageing of Trade Receivables 550 days T d.;a“ Due 0 360 daps over 360 days Total
As at 31st March, 2024
Grass Carrying Amount 62.20 - . 166.79 228.99
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance provision) 175.82 175.82
Het Carrying Amount 62.20 = - (9.03) 53.17
As at 31st March, 2023 -
Gross Carrying Amount 64.84 . . 164.50 229.34
Expected credit losses {Loss allowance provision) 0.12 - - 170.80 170.92
et Carrying Amount 64.72 - - (6.30) 58.42

Financial instruments and cash deposits
The Company is exposed to counter party risk relating to medium term deposits with banks, mutual fund and debt securities. o o .
The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, market reputation and service standards to select the banks with which balances and deposits are maintained. Generally, the balances are maintained with the

institutions with which the Company has also availed borrowings.

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade and other receivables and contract asset:

3 gl . 3 s 0 . Asat Asat
Reconciliation of Changes in the life time expected credit loss allowance: 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
0. 89.55
Loss allowance on 1 April, i (143,73)
Less : Utilised during the year 4.90 225;.10
Add : Provided during the year 175.82 170.92

Loss allowance on 31st March,

Liquidity risk . ) ] . g .

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet

ts liabilities when due. ) ] } . ] ) -

The Company’s objective is to maintain at all time optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company relies on a mix of borrowings, capital infusion and excess operating cash flows to meet its needs
the C s net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

for funds. The current borrowings are sufficient to meet its short to medium term ion needs.

The Company is required to maintain ratios (such as debt service coverage ratio and secured coverage ratio) as mentioned in the loan agreements at specified levels a[ld a}so cas.h deposits with banks to mitigate the risk of default in
repayments. In the event of any failure to meet these covenants , these loans become callable to the extent of failure at the option of lenders, except where exemption is provided by lender.

As at 31 March 2024
Farticulars Carrying Amount | On Demand Less than 12 months 1- 5 years >5 years Total
241,55 1,037.07 8,073.81 9,352.43
Borrowings 9,352.43 K g
. .65 . Y
Other Financial Liabilities 1,679.96 934.30 745 ,537.53
Trade and other bl 537.53 - 537.53 -
Ag at 31 March 2023
Carrying Amount | On Demand Less than 12 months 1- 5 years >5 years Total
9,675.27 - 976.57 6,036.10 2,662.60 9,675.27
2,243.08 - 1,431.68 811.40 - 2,243.08
308.91 5.63 303.28 - - 308.91
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41 Related Party Disclosures

Nates forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

41.01 Names of related parties and description of relationship as identified and certified by the Company:

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS - 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, names of the related parties, related party relationship,
outstanding balances including commitments where control exits and with whom transactions have taken place during reported periods are:

transactions and

Name of the Party Relationship
The Phoenix Mills Limited Holding company
Markatcity Resources Put Ltd Fellow subsidiary
Offbeat Developers Pyt Lid-Mall Fellow subisidiary
Offbeat Developers Pyt Ltd-AGH Fellow subsidiary
'Thoth Mall and Commercial Real Fell bsidi
estate Pvt Ltd SEELAEL
Vamona Developers Pvt Ltd. Fellow subsidiary
41.02 Transactions during the year:
Sr. No., Nature of Transaction 2023-24 2022-23
1 Issue of Equity Shares
Reco Zinnia Private Limited = 0.88
2 Purchase of Equity Shares -
The Phoenix Mills Limited - 4,00
3 Inter Carporate Deposit taken
Offbeat Develpoers Private Limited - 22,000.00
Vamona Developers Private Limited - 15,800.00
4 Repayment of Inter Corporate Deposit
Offbeat Develpoers Private Limited - 22,000.00
Vamona Developers Private Limited - 15,800.00
5 Investment in Optionally Convertible Debentures
Thoth Mall and Commercial Real Estate Private Limited 4,400.00 40,800.00
6 Issuance of Optionally convertible debentures
Offbeat Develpoers Private Limited - 21,500.00
Vamona Developers Private Limited - 28,300.00
7 Interest earned
Thoth Mall and Commercial Real Estate Private Limited 0.04 0.01
8 Interest expense*
Offbeat Develpoers Private Limited 0.03 0.01
Vamona Developers Private Limited 0.03 0.00
9 Property Management Fee & Advisory Services for Leasing
Market City Resources Private Limited 65.35 118.69
10 Electricity expenses - HVAC
Offbeat Develpoers Private Limited 355.51 377.70
11 Common area maintenance and other charges
Offbeat Develpoers Private Limited 81.51 35.54
The Phoenix Mills Limited 2,43 170
12 Parking Expenses
Offbeat Develpoers Private Limited 31.80 42.65
13 Parking Income
Offbeat Develpoers Private Limited 157.54 138.26
14 Staff welfare expenses
Beliona Hospitality private limited - 0.13
15 Advisory Services for leasing
Market City Resources Private Limited 36.32 -
16 Software License Fee - Others
Market City Resources Private Limited 8.23
17 Foreing Travelling - Others
Market City Resources Private Limited 17.47 -
18 Recoy, tax
0.49 r




Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19 Repairs & Maintenance -Upgrade - interiors
Offbeat Develpoers Private Limited 26.78 -
20 Rev share uniglo income
Offbeat Develpoers Private Limited 62.29 -
41.02  Amount due to/from related party as on:

Sr. No. Nature of Transaction 2023-24 2022-23
1 Optionally convertible debentures /Optionally fully convertible debentures

Offbeat Develposrs Private Limited 26,925.00 26,925.00

Vamana Developers Private Limited 28,300.00 28,300.00
2 Investment in Equity Shares

Thoth Mall and Commercial Real Estate Private Limited 783.78 783.78
3 Investment in Optionally Convertible Debentures

Thoth Mail and Commercial Real Estate Private Limited 45,200.00 40,800.00
4 Trade Payables

Offbeat Develpoers Private Limited 147.71 75.49

Market City Resources Private Limited 43.95 748.36
5 Trade Receivables

Offbeat Develpoers Private Limited 65.22 21.96

The Phoenix Mills Limited - 0.03
6 Interest Accrued

Offbeat Develpoers Private Limited 0.01 0.01

Vamona Developers Private Limited 0.03 0.00
7 Interest Receivable

Thoth Mall and Commercial Real Estate Private Limited 0.56 0.01

14th Fgar,
Central 8 Wing and
Narth £ Wie,
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As per our report of even date
For, BSR & Co. LLP

Membership No: 117694

Place: Mumbal

pae: Vg MAT 2024 .

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. The Company’s primary objective when managing capital is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and

healthy capital ratios and safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to support its business and provide maximum returns for shareholders. The Company also proposes to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

:or the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and short term
eposits.

) As At As At

Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

Loans and Borrowings 9,427.38 9,604.92

Less: Cash and cash equivalents + Bank Deposits 7,889.44 12,561.70

Net Debt. 1,537.94 (2,956.78)
Total Capital 67,208.37 66,556.20

Capital+Net Debt 68,746.31 63,599.42

Gearing Ratio 2.24% -4.65%|

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

Capital and other commitments
NIL

Contingent liabilities not provided for-

Claims against the Company not acknowledge as debt is of X in lakhs 1,841.00 (31st March 2023 : ¥ in lakhs 1,841.00) and interest thereon.

The company has reviewed all at its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for, there required and disclosed as contingent liaitities,in the financial statements.
The company does not expect the outcome of the contingent liability to have a materially adverse effect on its financial position.

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule It

Details of benami property held - .
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prahibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder

Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions.However working capital limits are not applicable to company

Wilful defaulter
Company have not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

Relationship with struck off companies
The company has no transactions with companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current financial year.

Undisclosed Income
The company has not surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

Valuation of PP&E, il ible asset and i property
The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or Investment Properties {including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets during the current or previous year.

(refer note no 5)

Utilisation of borrowed funds, equity and Share premium

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds by the Company to or in
any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries).

The Company has not received any fund from any party (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

Additional information as required under 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year :

Name of the company 2023-24 2022-23
Investment made in body corporate

investments in squity shares
Thoth Mall and Commercial Real Estate Private Limited 783.78 783.78

Investments in 0.0001% Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD) of fellow subsidiaries
45,200.00 40,800.00

Thoth Mall and Commercial Real Estate Private Limited
No Guarantee is given by the company.

The Financial statemnts are seperate financial statements and accordance to para 4(a) of Ind AS 110, exemption for the consalidation has been obtained from shareholders and used while preparing the financials
statements. Ultimate holding company -The Phoneix Mills Limited, a Listed company is preparing Consolidated Financial statement and same is available for public use.

The Company has acquired 40,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Thoth Mall and Commercial Real Estate Private Limited.)whereby the company become 80% shareholder of Thoth Mall and Commercial Real Estate Private

Limited. The said investment is amortised at cost in the financial statemnt.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited
CIN: U72900MH2000PTC126232

)

Rajesh Patil
(Pirector)
N: 07466330

Lalit Jain
(Director}
DIN: 08715049

ani

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 May 2024 Date: 10 May 2024




